

## Guidance 3 – Standing Orders

### **1. Meetings**

- 1.1 All meetings of Community Councils are open to members of the public. The Community Council shall have the right to discuss items of business in private where it considers it appropriate to do so.
- 1.2 The Chairperson shall notify those present why an item will be considered in private and the reason will be formally recorded in the minute of meeting.
- 1.3 The frequency of meetings will be determined by each Community Council, subject to a minimum of one Annual General Meeting and six ordinary meetings being held each year.
- 1.4 The notice of ordinary and Annual General Meetings of the Community Council featuring the date, time and venue shall be provided to each Community Council Member, Elected Members and the Community Council Liaison Officer by the Secretary of the Community Council at least seven days before the date of the meeting.
- 1.5 Special meetings may be called at any time on the instructions of the Chairperson or on receipt of not less than half of the total number of Community Councillors or if requested to do so in writing by 20 residents in the Community Council area. Special meetings shall be held within four weeks of receipt of such request and shall require at least seven days' public notice.

### **2. Minutes**

- 2.1 Minutes of all Community Council meetings shall be drafted timeously and distributed to members of the Community Council at least seven days prior to the next meeting. All minutes shall be submitted for approval to the next meeting of the Community Council.

### **3. Quorum**

- 3.1 The quorum for all Community Council meetings shall be one third of the current voting membership of the Community Council or four voting members, whichever is the greater.

### **4. Order of Business**

#### 4.1 Ordinary Meetings

The order of business for ordinary Community Council meeting should include:

- (a) Recording of those present and apologies received
- (b) Police Report if present
- (c) Minutes from previous meeting submitted for approval

- (d) Any matters arising not on the agenda for discussion
- (e) Correspondence
- (f) Reports from Office Bearers
- (g) Elected Member reports/updates
- (h) Consideration of any other agreed item of business as directed by the Chairperson
- (i) Members of the Public
- (j) Date of next meeting

The order of the items to be determined by each Community Council.

**4.2 Annual General Meeting**

The Annual General Meeting can be held prior to the commencement of an ordinary meeting. The minutes should be presented to the next ordinary Community Council meeting for the purposes of establishing accuracy however they will remain in draft form until the following Annual General Meeting.

The order of business at the Annual General Meeting should include the following:

- (a) Recording of those present and apologies received
- (b) Minutes of previous Annual General Meeting for approval
- (c) Chairperson's annual report (this can be written or verbal), questions from the floor
- (d) Treasurer presents the Annual Accounts, questions from the floor
- (e) Office Bearer positions if required
- (f) Close of meeting.

**4.3 Special Meeting**

The order of business at Special Meetings of the Community Council shall be as follows:

- (a) Recording of those present and apologies received
- (b) The nature of the Calling Notice for the Special Meeting
- (c) The business for debate, as described in the calling notice
- (d) Close of meeting.

**5. Order of Debate**

- 5.1 In instances where the Chairperson is absent, the meeting should proceed through the Vice Chairperson or other interim Chairperson (if the Vice Chairperson is absent) as agreed by the members present.
- 5.2 The Chairperson shall decide the order of questions, relevancy and competency arising at meetings of the community council and their ruling shall be final and not open for discussion.
- 5.3 The Chairperson in determining the order, relevance and competency of business and questions shall have particular regard to the relevance of the

issue to the community and ensure that the discussion and proceedings are conducted in such a manner that decisions are reached in a democratic manner.

- 5.4 In the event of disorder arising at any meeting, the Chairperson can adjourn the meeting to either the next scheduled meeting of the Community Council or another date and time.
- 5.5 Every Community Councillors' motion or amendment shall be proposed and seconded.
- 5.6 A motion or amendment once made and seconded shall not be withdrawn without the consent of the proposer and seconder thereof.
- 5.7 A motion or amendment which is contrary to a previous decision of the Community Council shall not be competent within six months of that decision, unless an error or new information becomes available which requires further consideration.

## **6. Voting**

- 6.1 Voting shall be taken by a show of hands of those present and eligible to vote with the exception of the appointment of office bearers which may be held by secret ballot.
- 6.2 The Chairperson of a meeting of the Community Council shall have a casting vote as well as a deliberative vote.
- 6.3 In the absence of the Chairperson, the casting vote shall be transferred to the Vice Chairperson or other interim Chairperson (if the Vice Chairperson is absent) as agreed by the members present.

## **7. Obstructive and Offensive Conduct**

- 7.1 In the event that any member of the Community Council or member of the public is disregarding the authority of the Chairperson or any other person present at the meeting, or conducts themselves in a disruptive, obstructive or offensive manner, a motion may be moved and seconded to remove the individual(s) from the remainder of the meeting.

7.2 Such a motion will be put to the meeting without discussion and if supported by a majority of the members of the Community Council present and voting, the motion will be declared carried. The individual will be required to leave the meeting immediately.

7.27.3 Where the individual refuses to leave the meeting, the Chairperson will close the meeting and defer any remaining business to the next scheduled meeting or another date and time.

## **8. Alteration of Standing Orders**

8.1 A proposal to alter the Standing Orders may be proposed to Aberdeen City Council at any time by the Community Council, provided that a notice of a motion to that effect is given at the meeting of the Community Council prior to submitting to Aberdeen City Council.

8.2 Aberdeen City Council shall have the final discretion on any proposed change of the Standing Orders.

## **9. Sub Committees**

9.1 The Community Council may appoint sub committees as it may from time to time decide and shall determine their composition, terms of reference, duration, duties and powers.

## **10. Suspension of Standing Orders**

10.1 These Standing Orders shall not be suspended except at a meeting at which two-thirds of the total number of Community Council members are present and then only if the proposer states the object of their motion and if two-thirds of those members present consent to such suspension.